ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON ECONOM C
DEVELOPNMENT, | NTERNATI ONAL TRADE AND TOURI SM
January 27, 2004
10: 07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Cheryll Heinze, Chair
Representative Lesil MQiire, Vice Chair
Representati ve Pete Kott

Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom

Representative Vic Kohring (via tel econference)
Representative Sharon Ci ssna

Representative Harry Crawford

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative N ck Stepovich
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 207
"An Act relating to taxes regarding certain conmercial passenger
vessels operating in the state; and providing for an effective
date."
- HEARD AND HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOWM TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 207

SHORT TITLE: TAX ON COMMVERCI AL VESSEL PASSENGERS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S): GATTO

03/ 24/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 24/ 03 (H EDT, TRA, FIN

01/ 27/ 04 (H EDT AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -1- January 27, 2004



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as sponsor of HB 207.

CODY RICE, Staff

to Representative Carl Gatto

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned changes in HB 207.

DAN DI CKI NSON, Director

Tax Division

Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 207, explained the
figures represented in the tables included in the sponsor
st at enent .

SUSAN BURKE, Attorney

Gross & Burke, PC

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing the North West Cruise Ship
Associ ation, testified on the constitutional issues that cover
the types of taxes involved with HB 207.

TOM DOW Vi ce President

Public Affairs

Car ni val Corporation

Princess Cruises

Seattl e, Washi ngton

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the I egal and econom c issues
that would arise if the |egislature passed HB 207.

DON HABEGER, Director of Industry Relations

Royal Cari bbean International

Cel ebrity Cruises

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 207, spoke to the
ram fications of "port pulling" and illustrated how the cruise
i ndustry works with conmunities to create destinations.

JOHN SHI VELY, Vice President

Government and Community Rel ations

Hol | and Anerica Line

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 207, comrented on the
state of the cruise ship industry and addressed the taxation of
the cruise industry.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 2- January 27, 2004



CHRI S ANDERSQON, Co- Omer and Managi ng Part ner

Orso Ristorante and d aci er Brewhouse

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to the tax proposed
in HB 207.

JOHNE BI NKLEY, President

Al aska Ri verways, Inc.

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 207.

LAWRENCE BLOOD, Executive Director

G eater Sitka Chamber of Commerce

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 207, spoke in
opposition to any targeted taxes towards the cruise industry.

CHRI'S VON | MHOF, Vice-President and Managi ng Director

Al yeska Resort

G rdwood, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 207, testified that
the cruise ship industry creates a major economc benefit for
all of A aska with the investnents that the industry mnakes
within the state.

ALAN LEMASTER, Presi dent

Gakona Junction Village Inc.

Gakona, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During hearing on HB 207, said his business
depends on the «cruise industry and voiced concern that a
targeted tax would Iimt the anmount of business in Gakona.

RON PECK, President and Chief Operating Oficer

Al aska Travel |ndustry Association (ATIA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During hearing on HB 207, testified against
specific and targeted taxes because the ATIA believes they are
burdensone to the tourismindustry.

PATTI MACKEY, Executive Director

Ket chi kan Vi sitors Bureau

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Speaki ng agai nst HB 207, shared concern the
about potential inpacts on individual comunities and their
abilities to negotiate with the cruise |lines.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 3- January 27, 2004



BONNI E QUI LL, Executive Director

Mat - Su Convention and Visitors Bureau

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 207, testified
that she wasn't opposed to taxing visitors to the state, but is
opposed to targeted taxes applied to visitors.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-1, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAIR CHERYLL HEINZE called the House Special Conmttee on
Econom ¢ Devel opnent, International Trade and Tourism neeting to
order at 10:07 a.m Representatives Heinze, Kott, Dahlstrom
Cissna, and Crawford were present at the <call to order
Representatives MGuire and Kohring (via tel econference) arrived
as the neeting was in progress. Representati ve Stepovich was

al so present.

HB 207- TAX ON COWERCI AL VESSEL PASSENGERS

Nunmber 0058

CHAI R HEI NZE announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 207, "An Act relating to taxes regarding certain
comercial passenger vessels operating in the state; and

providing for an effective date.” She also stated that the
intention was not to nove the bill fromcomittee today.
Nunber 0125

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS), Version 23-LS0850\I, Kurtz, 1/21/04, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version | was before the
comittee.

Number 0149
REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,

explained that HB 207 is a reasonable, realistic, and |egal way
for the state to obtain noney from the cruise ship industry for

services rendered and received. He pointed out that it is
common practice to focus taxes on specific industries, and that
this bill was an attenpt to recover the costs that the cruise

shi ps i npose on the state.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -4- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked Representative Gatto to point out the
differences in [Version |I] and give an explanation for the
changes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO deferred to M. Rice.
Nunber 0411

CODY RICE, Staff to Representative Carl Gatto, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained that the changes in Version | dealt with
noving the effective date of the bill and sone nunber changes
that occurred because of a rental-car tax passed during the |ast
session of the previous |egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG of fered his opinion that the tax proposed
by HB 207 wasn't the thing to do to boost the productivity of
the econony. He said he is worried that taxing the cruise ships
wi || discourage themfromconmng to the state.

Nunber 0717

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked if there was any consideration given
to establishing a tax based on the nunber of ports visited, to
the price of the ticket, or the nunber of days in the cruise.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that a typical «cruise ship
passage to Al aska |asts seven days, with visits to four ports.
He noted that if the cruise was going to the Caribbean or to
Mexi co, often there is a fee paid for each port visited. Rather
than doing that 1in Alaska and causing conpetition between
different ports, he wants to inpose a single tax on all cruise
ships, let the cruise industry decide the best destinations, and
use the noney generated from this tax to support those
comunities that host cruise ships. He went on to explain that
there is a |limt on the nunber of tines a person can be taxed
within a 30-day period. He also has sonme ideas on other ways to
make the passengers of the cruise ships happy, like giving them
a famly rate.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE asked Representative Gatto if there was

any wording in the bill that set the maxi numtax per famly.
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered that it wasn't in the bill, but is
sonething he is open to. He wants to use the input that he
gathers to nmake this bill as beneficial to the state as
possi bl e.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 5- January 27, 2004



Number 0990

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE asked for clarification on the idea that
the state would collect this tax, but then disburse it to those
ports that the cruise ships visits. She didn't see any wording

in the bill for that to happen, and was curious as to how that
could happen, since the governnent cannot have dedicated
revenues. She wanted to know if this was a case of municipal

revenue sharing.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that it was conplicated, but he would
like to put intent |anguage into the bill so those ports that
can host a cruise ship would get a large portion of this noney
to enhance the cruise ship experience. He would like to spread
this noney out to each place that can host cruise ships because,
he stated, the cruise ships like to change their destinations.
He would like for these destinations to have the funding to
i ncrease advertising and to enhance the custoner's experience.

REPRESENTATIVE MCGQUIRE asked why the state was a better
coll ector of these revenues than the |ocal governnent that would
ultimately use these revenues.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expl ained the practice of "port pulling,"”
and he doesn't want a situation where separate conmunities
conpete for the cruise ships by lowering their tax, or giving
nore resources, ultimately offering to inpose no tax and
dedicating a lot of resources in order to lure the cruise ships.
He remarked that the state has sone interest since the state
does incur sonme expenses because of the cruise ships, and this
bill would allow the state to recover sone of those expenses.

Nunber 1205
REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING offered that this legislation has no

positive inpact on the cruise ship industry. He stated that it
is his goal to help inprove the econony and therefore encourage

nore cruise ships to visit Al aska. He feels that taxing the
industry is a major philosophical issue that he doesn't agree
with. He understands that the bill has good intentions and that
Representative Gatto has his heart in the right place, but he
feels concern that passing this bill wll deter cruise ships
from comng to Al aska. He al so suggested that the commttee

send this issue to subcommttee to further discuss the topic.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that he does not favor the bill's
going to a subcommttee. He went on to explain that the use of

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 6- January 27, 2004



the word "tax" is incorrect when referring to this bill; this is
nore of a user fee. He referred to a docunent from the Ofice
of the Governor dated January 27, 2004. He read a statenent
from a page of that docunment |abeled "State Costs Incurred
Supporting the Visitor Industry in Alaska," which states in part
[original punctuation provided]:

In Brief, DO.'s [Departnment of Law s] conclusion is
that is entirely possible to construct a defensible
tax which falls on cruise ship acconmmodations as |ong
as it is wused to recoup, through taxes, related

gover nnment al expenses. Table 19 sets forth one such
prelimnary estimate of governnent expense for the
current fiscal vyear. As can be seen, public noney
spent far exceeds what wll be recouped in tax.

Because of the enornous anmount of spending by state
visitors with Al askan nerchants and service providers,
it is entirely appropriate that the state governnent

subsidizes the visitor industry. This is especially
true in areas where the expenditures can benefit
everyone, visitor and non-visitor alike. However, it

is also entirely appropriate, and legal, for the state
to recoup sone of those expenses through its taxing
power .

Nunber 1410

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO cited from a spreadsheet in the earlier
ment i oned docunent that the expenses potentially attributable to
the cruise industry equal $115, 861, 000. He said if that is the
case, that nunber is nore than the revenue from this tax by
alnmost two to one, if the tax was $100. He continued that
cruise ships cost the state a certain anount of noney, and
al though the state appreciates the business, the state is
| ooking to recoup sone of that noney. This fee doesn't try to
get all of the noney back, partly because the cruise ships
provi de many jobs and generate inconme for people. This fee is
to get sone of that noney back to use on other things, nanely,
education and facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE asked a question about what "incentive"
refers to in the "Cruise Ship Fees-Qther Countries" table in the
docunent obtai ned from Governor Mirkowski's office.
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered that he didn't know.

Number 1561

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -7- January 27, 2004



DAN DI CKINSON, Director, Departnent of Revenue, Tax Division,
informed the conmttee that incentives, as used in the "Cruise
Ship Fees-Oher Countries" table, are volune incentives designed
to lower the head tax for cruise ships based on the nunber of
tourists brought to the specific |ocations.

CHAI R HElI NZE expl ained that this issue was a little difficult to
di scuss, since the commttee had just received the docunents and
woul d probably have to conme back to the issue at a |ater tine.

REPRESENTATI VE  KOTT  noted t hat t he i nformation seened
specul ative and hard to track

CHAI R HEI NZE asked M. Dickinson to address weather the tables
dealt with user fees and if he could further explain them

MR. DI CKI NSON expl ai ned that the nunbers on the table are based
on estimates for state agencies that are effected by tourists
and how nuch spending those agencies attribute to the cruise
ship industry. He noted that there were sone state departnents
that were effected by the cruise ship industry, but there wasn't
sufficient data to nmake an esti nmate.

CHAI R HEI NZE asked if these nunbers reflected the user fees that
are already in place.

MR. DI CKI NSON wasn't sure, but said he would check on that for
the comm ttee.

Nunber 1730

SUSAN BURKE, Attorney, Goss & Burke, PC, Representing North
West Cruise Ship Association, testified on the constitutional
i ssues that cover the types of taxes that are involved with HB
207. She said the two issues she would be focusing on are the
tonnage clause and the right of interstate travel from the
privileges and immunities clause in the U 'S. constitution. She
said state or local governments aren't allowed to inpose taxes
on vessels based on the capacity of the vessel or the nunber of
passengers that vessel has. She offered that state and | oca

governments can inpose user fees. She said cruise ships are
al ready paying harbor dues and other fees in every port they
enter in Alaska. M. Burke stated that there are limtations on
t hese fees. She said based on the right of interstate travel

the U S. Suprene Court says the state or |ocal governnent cannot
i npose "head taxes" for the purpose of generating general

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 8- January 27, 2004



revenue to use on whatever it sees fit. The user fees that have
been upheld in the Suprene Court have been relatively snall fees
that defray the costs of the services or facilities that those
passengers actual |y use.

M5. BURKE cited an exanple of airports where the U S. Suprene
Court has upheld a small fee per passenger to help maintain the

bui | di ng. She noted that the fee wasn't used to help pave the
roads that inevitably those passengers will drive on to get to
the airport. She said there has to be a direct |inkage between

the total anount of revenues generated and the costs that can be
reasonably attributed to those particul ar passengers.

M5. BURKE noted that Congress passed a law in the fall of 2002
that sets the restrictions on the kinds of taxes that state and
| ocal governnments can inpose on vessels, vessel crews, or vessel
passengers. The law follows closely what the courts have upheld
relating to vessel taxes, head taxes, and passenger taxes. She
believes that this law applies to vessels passing through the
waters as well as to vessels that dock at a particular |ocation.

Number 2042

CHAI R HElI NZE asked Ms. Burke who ultimately decides if this bil
is legal or not.

M5. BURKE said she felt it nade no sense to adopt |egislation
that would be vulnerable to a successful |egal attack. She
acknow edged that the conmttee was sworn to wuphold the
constitution, and that she felt it was irresponsible for the
| egislature to pass a law that would ultimtely prove to be
illegal.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE asked if Ms. Burke was aware of any other
states that had prohibitions on dedicated funds.

M5. BURKE answered that she didn't know what states had that
prohi bition, but could find out for the committee. She added
that nunicipalities in Al aska were not restricted to dedicating
funds.

Number 2180
REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked Representative Gatto if he had a

statenment from Legislative Legal and Research Services regarding
the [constitutionality] of this piece of |egislation.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 9- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he has had discussion with Legislative
Legal and Research Services, but didn't (indisc.).

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said she felt it was appropriate for the
committee to see a letter from Legislative Legal and Research
Servi ces.

Number 2254

M5. BURKE said she has a letter from Kathryn Kurtz in
Legislative Legal and Research Services addressed to Senator
Cowdery on March 19, 2003; she paraphrased a portion of this
letter stating that caution should certainly be in order in
inmposing any fee or tax exclusively on vessels unless the
proceeds are used to provide services to the vessel. Ms. Burke
concluded that her opinions aren't controversial if attorneys
seemto be agreeing with them

Nunmber 2317
TOM DOW Vice President of Public Affairs, Carnival Corporation

Princess Cruises, said he agrees with Ms. Burke's testinony that
there are insurnountable |egal problens with the approach of

taxi ng nonresidents to pay for government services. He agreed
that the cruise lines should, and do, pay for facilities and
servi ces.

TAPE 04-01, SIDE B

MR. DOW shared that he thought there was a significant econom c
i ssue involved with the tax proposed by HB 207. He stated that
his research indicates that the tax would be a serious threat to
Interior Al aska, pointing out that a nunber of people who take a
cruise to Alaska participate in some of the add-on prograns that
allow them to visit one or nore l|locations in the Interior.
Carnival Corporation believes that if the state inposes a $100
tax, the nunber of people who choose this add-on feature wl
decrease and it wll have a dramatic negative inpact on the
econormy.

Nunmber 2304
REPRESENTATI VE KOIT expressed concern about the inpact on
Interior Alaska. He asked if there was any raw data to support

the claim that there would be a negative inpact based on an
exanple from another state or country.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -10- January 27, 2004



MR. DOW noted that in the sponsor's packet, the North West
Crui se Ship Association surveyed 1,200 people who had indicated
by witing to the state that they planned on making a trip to
Al aska. The survey showed that up to half of these people would
change their plans, as far as taking one or nore of the add-on
excursions, based on the type of tax that is proposed by HB 207.
He stated that it doesn't take very much to drive people in one
direction or another. He added that sonetines political or
econom ¢ circunstances can have a dramatic inpact on travel

MR. DOW shared his opinion that the success that the cruise ship
industry has had in Alaska has cone from offering a nore
inviting product [than in other cruises], with no nore cost.
M. Dow stated that this has happened because of the investnents
that the <cruise ship industry has mnade, as well as the
investnments that their partners have made throughout the state
by offering better and nore exciting things for the custoners to
do, all the while holding their prices down. He shared that the
idea is to offer nore wthout <charging nore, and this
| egislation is doing the exact opposite. He said that, in
essence, [the tax will result in] offering the same product, but
char gi ng nore noney.

Number 2202

CHAIR HEI NZE asked if the cruise lines paid corporate taxes on
the hotels that they use in the Interior.

MR. DOW answered that both Princess Cruises and Holland America
Line ("Holland Anerica") pay corporate incone taxes on their
Al aska business operations, rail cars, notor coach operations,
| odges, and hotels throughout the state.

Nunber 2193

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT inquired if the questionnaire that the North
West Cruise Ship Association used for the previously nentioned
survey would be available for the conmttee to see, stating that
sonetimes questionnaires are witten to illicit a certain
response.

MR. DOW stated that he could get that questionnaire. He went on
to add that Carnival Corporation has real-tine research on this
i ssue every day. He said that Carnival Corporation has trave
agents and reservation agents throughout its three conpanies
that are on the phones with custoners every day. He pointed out
that the reservation volune has increased if the conpany dropped

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -11- January 27, 2004



the price by as little as $5, and he feels that if the conpany

raised the price by $100, it would have a dramatic negative
effect.
Nunber 2197

DON HABEGER, Director of Industry Relations, Royal Caribbean
International; Celebrity Cruises, spoke in agreenment with M.
Dow and stated that he wanted to address the specific issue of
"port pulling" rather than reiterate the comments by M. Dow.
He disagreed with the previous point that one, or both, of the
comunities were harnmed by "port pulling.™ He made the point
that this wasn't the case in the project in Hoonah. He stated
that although it was true that Holland America is choosing to go
to a different destination in 2004 [Hoonah], and that there is a
comunity in Southeast Alaska that is going to |lose sone of the
cruise ship traffic [Sitka]. He expressed that it is not true
that the comunity that Holland Anmerica is leaving is
irreparably harmed and that Hoonah is wundercutting the other
communi ty's business.

MR. HABECGER stressed that Holland Anerica is spending a
substantial anpbunt of noney to create a destination with the
community of Hoonah, and that noney is far in excess of what
Sitka will be 1osing. Hol land Anerica feels that Hoonah is
benefiting greatly fromthis project.

Number 2052

JOHN SHIVELY, Vice President of Governnment and Conmunity
Rel ations, Holland America Line, comrented on the state of the
cruise ship industry as it exists today. He indicated that 10
or 15 years ago, basically the cruise industry destinations were
the Caribbean in the winter and Alaska in the sumer, so Al aska
didn't have a lot of conpetition in the summer. This is no
| onger the case. He cited many different ports in the Caribbean
that are open year-round, and also noted that the East Coast is
now offering an Eastern Canada run that directly conpetes wth

Al aska crui ses. He said that Mexican cruises conpete wth
Hol l and Anerica, and that Norwegian Cruise Lines is putting
three or four year-round ships in Hawaii. He provided that

al t hough the Al askan cruise business has grown over the years,
it has lost world market share because of conpetition.

MR. SHIVELY referred to the testinony offered by Representative

Gatto earlier in the commttee neeting, citing the tables that
were included in the docunent obtained from the Ofice of the

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -12- January 27, 2004



Governor dated January 27, 2004. He pointed out that in that
report it shows the current fees that the cruise ship industry
al ready pays in Al aska's ports.

MR. SHI VELY also indicated that Representative Gatto suggested
that one of the advantages of this legislation is that it would
allow the state to collect this noney and that the | ocal
governments wouldn't have to. He explained that there is
nothing in the legislation to prevent the |ocal governments from
collecting the fees and taxes that are already in place, stating
that because of this legislation the cruise ship industry would
be taxed tw ce. He addressed the information presented in the
docunent referring to expenses potentially attributable to the
cruise industry, cited the table pointing out exanples of what
he thought were inaccuracies, and asked the commttee not to
rely on this docunent.

Nunber 1892

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noted that since [the terrorist attacks of
Septenber 11, 2001] there has been a significant inpact on
tourism around the country. He asked what the industry's status
is today relating to volune of passengers and ticket prices,
conpared with where they were prior to those attacks.

MR. DOW shared that Al aska was probably hurt |ess than other
pl aces because it was a donestic destination, it was a |ong
| ead-tine item and the attacks happened at the end of the
tourist season. He surmsed that if the attacks would have
happened in July, it would have probably had a nuch greater
i npact . He noted that it inpacted sonme of the vessels because
[ Carnival Corporation] couldn't fly passengers in or out. He
added that the greater inpact dealt wth pricing. He shared
that nost commercial vessels, with a few exceptions, wll fill
their ships at sone price. That is why he feels the extra $100
wi |l have a negative inpact on the business. He added that the
tourist industry is recovering from the terrorist attacks of
Sept enber 11, 2001, but it is not where it was prior to those

at t acks. He reiterated that Al aska has had fewer problens
because it is a donestic destination, but there have been nore
costs for the cruise lines to provide security and other
nmeasur es.

Nunber 1796

CHAIR HEI NZE asked for specific reasons Alaska has lost its
percentage of the world market cruise business.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -13- January 27, 2004



MR. SHIVELY attributed the lost share to Alaska's being nore
expensive than other nmarkets, nanmely, the Caribbean. He
continued that the industry has expanded its capacity worl dw de,
so cruise lines have had to | ook for other venues that were not
needed a few years ago.

CHAI R HEI NZE sought clarification on the total anount of noney
spent by the cruise industry on marketing Al aska, and how mnuch
it helps Alaska Travel Industry Association (ATIA) wth its
mar ket i ng of Al aska.

MR. HABEGER estimated that, collectively, the cruise |lines spend
$70 mllion a year on marketing Al aska, and contribute an extra
$2 mllion a year to ATIA

MR. DOW added that that figure was about half of the private-
sector contributions.

Nunber 1722

CHAIR HEINZE inquired if the noney contributed to ATIA was
required.

MR. HABECER responded that they are not required to contribute
the $2 mllion, that each cruise line has joined the ATIA
voluntarily, and that the different cruise lines donate the
noney because the industry feels that Alaska is an inportant
destinati on.

CHAIR HEINZE asked if the noney donated to ATIA was used
specifically for the cruise industry.

MR. HABEGER answered that the noney is given to ATIA and
through ATIA's marketing commttee the noney is disbursed to
many busi nesses throughout the state. He added that the noney
typically goes to the "Alaska travel planner,” and that he
believes that this year the ATIA is buying sonme television
advertising tine to market Al aska as a destination.

Number 1693

MR, SHIVELY added that nost of the nmarketing in the Al aska
travel planner was directed towards independent travel, not the
cruise lines. He stated that the cruise industry supports the
Al aska travel planner for the good of the cause, noting that
many of the business partners rely heavily on the Al aska trave

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -14- January 27, 2004



pl anner, and that the cruise lines think that supporting the
Al aska travel planner provides a good benefit to the overall
business in the state.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked for total amount the cruise |ines pay
in fees at the different ports at this tine.

MR. SHI VELY estimated that the industry pays between $15 million
and $20 mllion a season in fees for usage of Al askan ports.

Number 1608

MR. DOW estimated that the cruise |ines spend about $200,000 a
week in Alaska on docking and facility fees, naking the anount
per passenger in the $20 to $25 range. He noted that based on
the nunber of ports the cruise visits, and whether they are
private or public docks, the total anmount per passenger would
vary. He said that he could provide a nore conprehensive
listing if the commttee desired.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT inquired about the length of cruises in
Al aska.

MR. DOW responded that the nmpjority of the cruises are seven
days, accounting for about 85 to 90 percent of the traffic. He
continued that there are cruises as long as fourteen days, but
nore likely ten or eleven days. He added that there are a few
two-to three-day "sanpler" cruises that the industry has at the
begi nning or end of a season.

Nunber 1544

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked if there were many passengers that
took a roundtrip cruise from Seattle to Seward.

MR. DOW acknow edged that it was possible for passengers to take
that trip, but stated that very few do. He explained that there
are Vancouver [British Colunmbial] and Seattle "Inside Passage
roundtrips” that usually take seven days; sonme of those cruises
| ast three or four days, wth the passengers getting off the
vessel and going up to the Yukon Territory and into the Interior
of Al aska.

Number 1511

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked about the length, in weeks, of the
touri st season.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -15- January 27, 2004



MR. DOW responded that the tourist season lasts 18 to 20 weeks,
with the bulk of the business in the 120-day period between the
m ddl e of May and the m ddl e of Septenber.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD, noting the pitfalls in the approach
taken by this particular bill, asked if there was a better
approach the cruise lines could offer.

MR. SHI VELY answered, as an Alaskan, that if there were an
income tax or a sales tax, the cruise industry would contribute
substantial | y. He said the cruise industry would contribute
because it has 16,000 to 18,000 enployees, and those enpl oyees
woul d contribute if there were an incone tax. He continued that
if there were a sales tax, the enployees, as well as the
passengers of the vessels, would contribute to that tax. He
noted the sales tax figures in Ketchikan and Juneau and conpared
the noney collected in the fall and wnter to the noney
collected in the spring and summer to enphasize his point about
the inpact the cruise ships have in this area.

Nunmber 1434
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked for nore suggestions.

MR, SHI VELY shared that the cruise industry is unlike other
busi nesses because it is not exporting anything from Al aska and
reselling it; it is inporting spenders. He suggested taxing the
spending so the burden falls evenly on everyone, not just the
tourists or crui se passengers.

CHAI R HElI NZE asked for confirmation that the airlines bring in a
little over 400,000 people annually, and that the cruise lines
bring in a little over 800,000 people annually who spend $1, 240
on aver age.

MR. DOW confirnmed those estimates, citing the state travel
association, stating he believed that those were reasonable
estimtes based on the average cruise passenger who spends a
little nore than seven days in Al aska and that those passengers
typically save noney before they arrive in Al aska and spend it
when they get to Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT shared his idea on allow ng casino gamng
within the state waters.

Number 1304

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -16- January 27, 2004



CHRI S ANDERSON, Co-Owner, Managing Partner, Orso Ristorante and
G aci er Brewhouse, testified that he is not in favor of the tax
proposed in HB 207. He said his business relies on the noney
spent by the tourists, and in his experience, the discounted
travel er spends |ess noney. He supports any legislation that
woul d encourage nore tourismin Anchorage, but said it was ill-
advised to add nore costs to travel during this tine of economc
recovery.

Number 1210

JOHNE BI NKLEY, President, Al aska Riverways, Inc., testified in
opposition to HB 207 for two basic reasons. He said it wl

have a negative effect on his famly's business, noting that the
business is highly dependent on cruise ship passengers that
continue their wvacation into the Interior of Al aska. He
continued that since [the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11,
2001], the conpetition has tightened up for visitors comng to
Alaska and that the custonmers have becone nuch nore price

consci ous. Based on that, M. Binkley has seen a substanti al
decline in the nunmber of cruise ship passengers who cone to the
Interior. He continued that in an effort to cope with that
decline, the only way he can cut costs is to hire fewer
enpl oyees, since the fuel costs, i nsurance  costs, and
mai nt enance costs have gone up. He stated that Al aska

Ri verways, Inc., has also raised its marketing budget to entice
custonmers to its business.

MR. BI NKLEY said he al so opposes this |egislation because unlike

the other mjor industries - nanely, the oil and tinber
i ndustries, which have only a few nmgjor producer - the tourism
i ndustry is ubiquitous. M. Binkley feels that any solution

shoul d be broad based in nature, instead of trying to target one
segnent of the industry to bear the burden.

Nunber 1061

CHAIR HEINZE inquired as to the anobunt of passengers from the
cruise ships that M. Binkley feels are custoners of his
busi ness.

MR. BI NKLEY estimated that tens of thousands of people fromthe
cruise ships <cone to Fairbanks and patronize his two
attractions.

Number 1013

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -17- January 27, 2004



LAWRENCE BLOOD, Executive Director, Geater Sitka Chanber of
Commerce, spoke in opposition to any targeted taxes towards the
crui se industry. Referring to the sponsor statenment for HB 207

M. Blood noted that there were inconsistencies in the
formul ation of the actual costs incurred by the State of Al aska
attributed to the cruise ship industry. He cited that the

cruise ships are estimated to bring in 807,000 passengers into
Al aska [next tourist season], amounting to $80.7 mllion in
taxes directed toward the cruise industry. Referring to the
statenent regardi ng sal es taxes, inconme taxes, and user fees, he
said approximately one-third of the local sales tax in Sitka
were paid by the cruise ship passengers visiting there.

MR. BLOOD continued, stating that for nore than 30 years cruise
shi ps have been carrying passengers from around the world to
Al aska. He added that the cruise industry has beconme a grow ng
part of the Al askan econony. He focused on the partnerships
that the cruise industry has nmade with both public and private
sectors. He noted the Crescent Harbor dock and construction of
the downtown public restroons in Sitka, financially supported by
the cruise industry, that are used year-round by the citizens in
the community. He added that the cruise lines now pay between
$65 and $80 per passenger in fees and taxes for state and | ocal
gover nment s, port mai nt enance, ener gency servi ces, and
infrastructure.

MR. BLOOD di sclosed that each year, cruise passengers nake over
$12 mllion in direct purchases from local Sitka businesses,
bringing in over $720,000 in sales taxes paid to the city of

Sitka. M. Blood also pointed out that the cruise industry
contributes over $100, 000 to | ocal Si tka nonpr ofi t
or gani zati ons. Providing all of this information, M. Bl ood
said he wonders what the cruise industry is not paying to
Al aska, referring again to the sponsor statenent. He opi ned
that this bill is a case where the governnment is taxing and

bl am ng soneone else for its fiscal problens.
Nunber 0801

MR, BLOOD referred again to the sponsor statenment and the
passage dealing wth [the governnent's] right to charge
industries that reap the benefits of doing business in Al aska.
He enphasi zed the services that the cruise industries provide to
the State of Alaska and to the |local comrunities. He questioned
what other industries bring people fromaround the world just to
spend noney in the state. M. Blood stated that the cruise

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 18- January 27, 2004



i ndustry supports [Sitka's] |local governnent, jobs, and |ocal
econony. He inplied that the cruise industry does nore for
Sitka than the state does, especially since revenues have been
cut.

MR. BLOOD warned that this could be a danaging piece of
| egislation, citing the North Wst Cruise Ship Association's
survey, and asked if this legislation would do nore damage than
good. He added that Sitka realizes the potential damage that
| egislation like HB 207 can bring, and therefore has always
opposed a head tax targeted towards the cruise industry. M.
Bl ood comented that after [the terrorist attacks of Septenber
11, 2001] Al aska benefited from the cruise lines' noving their
ships to safer waters in Al aska, and he feels they could just as
easily go back.

MR. BLOOD ended his testinony by bringing up that he feels that
HB 207 wll allow the State of Alaska to unfairly conpete wth
private industry by providing a $100 incentive for people to use
the Al aska Marine H ghway System since the tax proposed wll
not apply to vessels operated by the State of Al aska.

Nunmber 0640

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE said she agreed with nost of what M.
Bl ood said, adding that she thinks that HB 207 would violate the
commerce clause if the state exenption were kept in the bill.
She expressed that the one comment that she took exception to
was M. Blood's statenent regarding cutting the nunicipal
revenue sharing in Sitka. She pointed out that the state has
done a lot with the trooper acadeny, the schools funded by the
governnment, and other things in Sitka.

MR, BLOOD retracted his comment, referring to the point that
Sitka's governnment is in a financial bind.

Nunber 0517

CHRIS VON | VHOF, Vice-President and Managing Director, Alyeska
Resort, testified, reiterating the previous points that the
cruise ship industry creates a major econom c benefit for all of
Al aska with the investnents that the industry nakes within the
state. He added that he feels the cruise industry contributes
the mjority of funding for the marketing of Alaska as a
destination, as well as contributing to the ATIA. M. von | mhof
stated that Alyeska Resort receives a large percentage of its
business from the cruise industry, and the resort is concerned

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -19- January 27, 2004



with the conpetitive market. Al yeska Resort has already seen
sonme decrease in nunbers of custoners, and fears that wth
i ncreased pricing, the resort will |ose nore business.

MR VON IMHOF said that the resort was in opposition to a
targeted tax, but would support a property tax, a sales tax, or

maybe an incone tax. He al so suggested that if need be, the
government could tap into the pernmanent fund to pay for
essential governnment services. He used an exanple of a cruise

line avoiding ports in Bernuda, because of the high fees wth
docking there, as a warning against a targeted tax |ike the one
proposed by HB 207.

Number 0313

ALAN LEMASTER, President, Gakona Junction Village Inc., stated
that his business is extrenely dependent on the cruise industry
for its revenue and voiced his concern that a targeted tax would
limt the amount of business in Gakona. M. LeMaster cited a
falloff in business in the previous years because of the
di scounted rates offered by the cruise lines, and is wary of
nore of a falloff because the increase in price froma tax |ike
the one proposed in HB 207 would | ower the nunber of people who
t ake advantage of the add-on services |like the one his business
provi des.

Number 0109

RON PECK, President and Chief Operating Oficer, Al aska Travel
I ndustry Association (ATIA), testified against specific and
targeted taxes because the ATIA believes they are burdensone to
the tourismindustry.

TAPE 04-02, SIDE A

Nunber 0001

MR PECK confirned the wearlier testinony from the cruise
industry that the ATIA receives $2 nmillion in voluntary
contributions from the cruise industry for the ATIA s nmarketing
efforts. M. Peck added that the cruise industry spends an

addi ti onal $200,000 to $300,000 on specific prograns within the
ATI A He validated that the new television advertisenents have
no nmention of cruises because the ATIA is trying to pronote the
i ndependent busi ness sector.

Number 0094

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 20- January 27, 2004



CHAI R HEI NZE asked for confirmation that the nunber of tourists
attributable to the cruise ships was roughly 800,000 passengers.

MR. PECK answered that 775,000 people took a cruise in Al aska
during 2003; that nunber is up about 36,000 people from the
previous year, neaning that the growh was all based in the
crui se sector because independent travel was down in 2003.

CHAIR HEINZE inquired as to how nuch noney from the cruise
passengers woul d go back into the general fund.

MR. PECK, citing state reports, said that the contribution is
esti mated between $800 and $1,260 per person. He went on to
include the estimated anount of noney contributed to
muni ci palities by the cruise industry at $125 million, based on
a study by Eric McDowell in 1996.

CHAI R HElI NZE asked M. Peck to provide that information to the
conmittee.

MR. PECK agr eed.
Number 0306

PATTI MACKEY, Executive Director, Ketchikan Visitors Bureau,
speaki ng agai nst HB 207, shared her concern about the potentia
i npact t hat this legislation would have on individual
comunities and their abilities to negotiate with the cruise
| i nes. Ms. Mackey described the nutually beneficial
relationship the city of Ketchikan has had wth the cruise
i ndustry. She stated that because of the city's ability to
negotiate with the cruise |ines, Ketchikan has constructed two
dock extensions as well as obtained funding for inprovenents to
one of the local harbors within the |ast decade. She also noted
that recently, after negotiations wth the cruise Ilines,
Ket chi kan i npl enented a passenger service fee that the city just
started to collect January 1, 2004.

M5. MACKEY stated that the noney collected by this fee wll
allow the city of Ketchikan to expand and rework existing port
facilities, enabling nore ships to dock during the tinme they are
in port in Ketchikan. Ms. Mackey added that each comunity
serving and being served by the cruise lines has, up to this
point, had the freedomto work with the cruise lines to neet its
needs. Ms. Mackey pointed out that, from an economc
standpoint, the city of Ketchikan has becone nore dependent on
the cruise industry because it has lost ground in its

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -21- January 27, 2004



traditional fishing and tinber industry markets; she said that
the <cruise industry currently represents the only growh
i ndustry in Ketchikan

Number 0525

BONNI E  QUILL, Executive Director, Mat-Su Convention and
Visitor's Bureau, testified that she was not opposed to taxing
visitors, but she is opposed to targeted taxes applied to
visitors, such as statew de bed taxes, rental car taxes, and

cruise ship head taxes. She stated, "Qur industry has cone
forward with a plan that includes all sectors of the visitor
i ndustry, broad-based plan that represents all visitors who
travel to Al aska." She asked the comrittee to review and

support the industry initiative.

M5. QU LL commented on the inpact that cruise ship passengers
have on the Mat-Su Valley. She described how the noney spent by
crui se ship passengers affects the econony in the Mat-Su Vall ey,
citing that the noney spent by these passengers on services
tours trickles down to support a w de range of other businesses
such as |l|aundry, accounting, and day care. She added that
crui se ship passengers also contribute to local taxes through
sal es taxes and bed taxes, stating that cruise ship passengers
account for between one-third and one-half of the total bed
taxes collected in the Matanuska- Susitna Borough.

M5. QU LL explained that nost of the funding for the Mat-Su
Convention and Visitors Bureau cones from the borough-w de bed
tax, which the cruise ship passengers account for nearly half
of . She pointed out that the bed tax dollars are used towards
mar keting all segnents of tourismin the Mit-Su Valley, adding
that the Mat-Su Valley is a place where tourismis grow ng and
is enbraced by its residents. Ms. Quill expressed her concern
about the negative effects of HB 207.

Number 0655

MR. DICKINSON clarified sone of the questions raised from his
earlier testinony by explaining how the fees potentially
attributable to cruise industry did not take into account fees
that were already in place, since those fees affected the
general fund. He summarized that the figures on the table
reflected the total cost for the services provided.

Nunber 0707

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -22- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded to all the testinony and
expressed that he felt beaten up. He acknow edged that the
cruise ship industry's purpose was to make noney, stating that
it was | audable and "when they make noney, we all do better.”
He also pointed out that M. Dow had stated that the ships

al ways sail full, and added that the cruise lines are building
nore ships. He enphasi zed that because of these reasons, the
nunber of passengers to Alaska wll increase, bringing nore
business to the state wherever the cruise ships stop. He argued
the rationale that the cruise lines will stop comng to Al aska
if the fees are raised. Representative Gatto cited the North
West Cruise Ship Association's survey, stating it was an old
survey that was put together by +the MDowell group in

Washi ngton, D.C., that used vague | anguage; he commented that it
was possible to solicit any type of response desired by going to
the right conpany.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO contradicted the North \West Crui se
Association's report by citing an unofficial survey that he'd
conducted hinself, asking passengers off the cruise ships if
their plans would have changed if there were an additional $100
charge to their trip. He stated that out of all the people that
he questioned, only one had responded that he or she nmy

reconsi der. Representative Gatto stated that [this |egislation]
will not hurt any l|ocal businesses as long as the cruise lines
continue to bring in custoners, which he believes will continue

to happen. He backed that conmment up with a statenent regarding
the anpbunt of noney the cruise industry nakes off of coming to
Al aska, focusing on the shops that the ships have on board the
vessels, as well as the businesses that the industry owns and
operates within Al aska.

Nunmber 1026

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO continued on to explain his interpretation
of the "kickback” that the cruise industry receives from | oca
busi nesses for them to be on the "approved list." He referred
to Juneau airplane operators that he'd interviewed and their
comments stating that they barely make a living after paying the
pil ots, fuel costs, ai rpl ane mai nt enance, i nsur ance, and
"ki ckbacks" that they give to the «cruise industry. He
reiterated that the cruise lines nake so much noney that they
woul d never stop com ng to Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that the only problem with the

proposed legislation lies with the legality of it. He said that
it is not up to the cruise industry or for [the legislators] to

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -23- January 27, 2004



determine the legality, but for the courts to determ ne. He
referred to the earlier testinony by M. Burke by stating that
it was not irresponsible for the legislature to adopt this bil

because he has researched the legality of the bill and woul d not
waste his tinme or effort if he felt that this bill was illegal

He cited his data that the cruise industry costs the state $135
mllion, and that the state stands to gain from this tax $70
mllion, if the fee remains $100, and pointed out that the
cruise industry pays no corporate incone tax. He stated that
because of the comerce clause and the maritinme clauses, the
cruise industry feels that it can defeat this proposed tax by

referring to legislation that appears to prohibit it. He
commented on the cruise industry's stance against this bill and
that it is relying on businesses to help support its stance by
the businesses' stating that their [livelihood depends on the
crui se ships. Representative Gatto agreed that the businesses
were dependent on the <cruise ships, but stated that the
custoners will not go away. He commented that the conbination

of separate issues relating to taxes, business |osses, and
legality is "nuddying the water."

Number 1238
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO added that the cruise industry does not pay

corporate incone taxes, while other conpeting industries do. He
stated that the tax in HB 207 is no nore of a focused tax than

the ones levied by the state on the oil, tinber, fishing, and
m ning industries. He brought up the issue of a broad-based
tax, stating that nost constituents do not want that sort of tax
i nposed. Representative Gatto comrunicated that Alaska is a

resource-based econony, stating that the tourism industry
doesn't exactly fit the definition of a resource but that the
way the state handles it is simlar. Representative Gatto
stated that he believes it is only fair for the cruise ship
industry to pay the proposed tax, or "user fee" if that is the
preferred wording, based on its profit margin and its use of
Al aska's resources.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO closing by comenting that the cruise
i ndustry makes a |l ot of noney by being in Alaska, and it is fair
for [the state governnent] to expect reasonable conpensation for
the cruise lines' access to Al aska. He feels that HB 207 has
enormous nerit and asked for strong consideration from the
conmittee.

Nunber 1425

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 24- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE addressed the validity of Representative
Gatto's statenents, saying she believed that he was concerned
about the fiscal gap in Alaska and he was trying to create a
solution to that problem She believes that this bill is not an
attenpt for retribution and that Representative Gatto truly does
support the cruise industry. Representative McQuire stated that
she had three |egal concerns, noting the frustration that can be
attributed to |l egal barriers, starting with the tonnage cl ause.

Nunber 1458

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE el aborated on the history of the tonnage
cl ause, stating that the governnment didn't want to have barriers
to the free travel of ships to different ports. She stated that
the tonnage clause isn't just an arbitrary thing, but an actua
|l egal thing that has to be dealt with when tal king about user
f ees. She al so encouraged Representative Gatto to start using
the term "user fees" over "head tax". She pointed out two
points for Representative Gatto to think about, referring to the
t onnage cl ause specifically.

REPRESENTATI VE MQGUJ RE asked Representative Gatto to show a
direct correlation between the fee assessed to the cruise |ines
or passengers and the costs attributed to nedical, fire, and
police services necessary to serve the passengers. She
continued that creation of facilities and the nmaintenance of
those facilities can be related to the fee. She questioned the
fee of $100 that is included in HB 207, stating that there was

nothing in the sponsor's statement or bill packet that shows a
direct connection with that anount and the actual costs that are
incurred by the ports. She cited the governor's office report

where it showed costs of a few dollars per person, stating her
opinion that the proposed $100 fee probably wouldn't survive a
| egal chal | enge.

Nunmber 1608

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE inquired about the relationship between
the legal interaction of the State of Al aska' s constitutional
prohibition on dedicated funds and the tonnage clause's
requirenent that any wuser fee goes directly toward those
services and facilities used by the vessel or passenger. She
suggested that the information could probably be prepared by the
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Servi ces.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE presented her third question, which she
t hought would have to be conpletely taken out of the bill,

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -25- January 27, 2004



referring to state vessels and state ferries' being exenpt from
this fee. She cited a Supreme Court test that specifically
addresses comerce clause chall enges and how a tax can be upheld
under the commerce cl ause. She stated that the fourth part of
the Suprenme Court test is very specific in reference to not
providing a direct comrercial advantage to |ocal businesses.
Representative McCQuire referred to Representative Kott's recent
rental car tax, stating that it was undoubtedly a targeted tax.
She said that there are two things that make that tax quite
different from this one. She elaborated on the lack of a
tonnage clause that applies to a rental car, and the fact that
the tax applied to every rental car agency, regardless of

whether it had |ocal or outside ownership. She related these
points to the tax in HB 207, stating that by not taxing state-
owned vessels, the bill is creating an unfair business
advant age.

Nunber 1712

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE shared that she has been working with a
group in Pacific NorthWst Economic Region (PNVER) that would
create a ferry pass that would allow passengers to trave

bet ween Washington State, British Colunbia, and Al aska ferries
to increase foot passengers within the ferry system to generate
nor e noney.

Number 1750

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed that her background was not in
the legal services but rather nental health and publications, so
she is addressing this issue from that point of view She
commented that based on the cost that was required to nmake the
North West Cruise Association's survey, nanely, the quality of
the paper and the expense of printing the four-color panphlet,
she is considering the fact that there are |egal concerns and
that the industry has the potential to tie up this legislation
in court for a very long tine. Representative C ssna continued
that the state has to devise fair ways to address the current
fiscal problem and that the bill would have to clear up its
| egal issues if it was to be successful.

Nunber 1849
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he knew of the previously nentioned
i npedi nrents, the tonnage and conmerce clauses, as well as the

Maritime [Transportation] Security Act of 2002, and would not go
forward wi thout being able to address these inpedinents. He

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 26- January 27, 2004



continued that it isn't good public policy to back off of a bill
because the opposition has a |ot of noney, stating that if that
were the case, whomcould the state ever take a stand agai nst.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA pointed out that she has a letter from
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services stating that there is a
potential legal problemwth this type of tax.

CHAI R HElI NZE cautioned Representative Gatto in his use of the
term "ki ckback. "

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded that that was the term used by
t he people who had to pay these fees.

CHAIR HEI NZE questioned whether it was people in the tourist
i ndustry using that term

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expressed that the people he talked to were
"hardshi p cases"” and used that term when referring to the cruise

i ndustry. He went on to say that those people talked about
other issues that he felt would take up too nuch tinme at this
poi nt . He suggested that if the commttee would rather he use

the word "comm ssion,” he would, but that isn't the term that
was used when he was talking with people within the industry.

Number 1960

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT offered that in a separate comrittee they
used the term "return on investnent" when dealing with the type
of fees that are being referred to as a "kickback.” He went on
to voice simlar concerns that Representative MQ@iire had,
stating that the last thing [the |legislature] wants is to end up
in court spending noney on [the legislature' s] behalf, or for
the Senate to cone back to show a |egal docunent stating that
the bill was "on thin ice."

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT presented sone nunbers relating to a sales
tax, speculating on the anount of revenue that would be
generated by enacting that type of tax. Representative Kott
stated that he thought it was great that Representative Gatto
spent the time to conduct his own survey, noting that it showed
that it was a genuine issue that Representative Gatto had sone
serious interest in. However, Representative Kott comented
that sonmeone will say one thing to a person's face, but then
change that opinion when it cones tinme to vote.

Number 2042

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -27- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KOTT shared that he had requested a copy of the
guestions wused in the North Wst Cruise Association's pol
because he understood that those types of surveys can be skewed
by the manner in which the questions are asked.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT expressed concern about the inpact that this
tax would have on snmall businesses within the state, saying he
felt there was sonme genuine concern from those businesses that
if this tax was inposed, fewer people would take the add-on
excursions, especially in the Interior.

Number 2125

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO poi nted out that "Channel 2" did a dockside
poll, which he felt better represented the facts.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said it was another person-to-person poll
and those sonetines are m sl eadi ng.

CHAI R HEI NZE asked Representative Kott if he'd be wlling to
chair a subconmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said he'd be willing to chair a subcommttee
and to work with the sponsor and the industry on the issues to
try to resolve sone of the |egal aspects of the bill. He asked
Chair Heinze to assign Representative MQ@ire to the
subconm ttee, if she desired, to help with the legal issues. He
noted that the bill didn't get a House Judiciary Standing
Conmittee referral.

Nunber 2174

CHAIR HEINZE asked Representatives Dahlstrom and MQiire to
partici pate.

REPRESENTATI VES DAHLSTROM and MCGUI RE bot h agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked Chair Heinze to appoint one of the
mnority Representatives to the comittee; he recomended
Represent ati ve Crawf ord.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said she'd be happy to defer to
Represent ati ve Crawf ord.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 28- January 27, 2004



CHAIR HEINZE  announced t he subconmm ttee for HB  207:
Representative Kott, chair; Representative Crawford, and

Representative McGuire. [HB 207 was held over.]
ADJ QURNVENT

Nunber 2199

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Committee on Econom c Devel opnent, International Trade
and Tourism neeting was adjourned at 12:29 p.m

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -29- January 27, 2004



